



ACCREDITING BUREAU OF HEALTH EDUCATION SCHOOLS | ABHES

7777 Leesburg Pike, Suite 314 N. · Falls Church, Virginia 22043
Tel. 703/917.9503 · Fax 703/917.4109 · E-Mail: info@abhes.org

ABHES BULLETIN

To: ABHES-Accredited Institutions and Programs
Recognized Accrediting Agencies
State Departments of Education
U.S. Department of Education
Interested Parties

From: India Y. Tips, Interim Executive Director

Date: August 2, 2018

Subject: Proposed Revisions to ABHES Accreditation Manual – Call for Comment

The Accrediting Bureau of Health Education Schools (ABHES) regularly reviews its accreditation policies, procedures and standards and seeks your thoughtful input regarding the proposed revisions to the *Accreditation Manual* provided below. Please note that the new language is underlined, and the deleted language is ~~struck~~.

ABHES is requesting that you carefully read the proposed revisions below and submit any comments and/or recommendations using the following link:

[Call for Comment on Proposed Revisions to the Accreditation Manual - August 2018](#)

Upon receipt and review of any written comments, the Commission may adopt the revision as proposed, adopt the revision with further changes, defer action for additional consideration, or reject the proposed revision. For all adopted revisions, ABHES will establish an effective date and announce the revisions prior to that date.

Comments must be provided on or before, Friday, August 17, 2018, for Commission consideration at the next Commission meeting.

Thank you in advance for your participation.

CHAPTER I – GENERAL INFORMATION

SECTION B – Policies Affecting Institutions and Programs

Subsection ~~76~~ –Third-party contracts, transfer credits, ~~and Consortium or a~~Articulation, ~~and consortium~~ agreements

Third-Party Contracts

Third-party contracts refer to situations in which an institution or program arranges to have some portion of its services delivered by another party. ~~This is distinct from transfer of credit by which the institution or program recognizes coursework completed at another accredited institution. In these ease cases, of a third party contract the services provided, including any coursework, are treated as if they services had been provided directly by the institution or program.~~

An institution or program may contract with a third party to provide a portion of an educational program or to provide other management or services required by ABHES. Third-party contracts providing student instruction must be approved ~~by ABHES~~ prior to implementation. The institution or program seeking approval must submit ~~the following:~~ (1) a proposal that identifies the third party and the services to be provided under contract; (2) a copy of the proposed contract; and (3) a statement indicating that the institution or program retains responsibility for compliance with all ABHES requirements.

~~Please note that F~~for degree programs, no more than 49 percent of program credits or the recognized clock-hour equivalent may be provided by any third party. ~~In addition, Minimally, a minimum of~~ 25 percent of the coursework provided by the institution or program accredited by ABHES must consist of core courses.

Transfer Credits

Every institution must have transfer of credit policies that are publicly disclosed in accordance with 34 CFR§668.43(a) (11) of the Higher Education Act (HEA) and include a statement of the criteria established by the institution regarding transfer of credit earned at another institution of higher education. ~~Institutions are encouraged to accept transfer credits to promote academic mobility and to avoid requiring students to unnecessarily repeat prior equivalent coursework.~~

An institution or program may accept credits or clock hours earned at another institution accredited by an agency recognized by the ~~Secretary United States Department of Education (USDE)~~ or the Council for Higher Education Accreditation (CHEA) to satisfy specific requirements for completion of a program. An institution or program may accept credits or clock hours earned at another institution that is not located in the United States or its territories if the specific foreign education is evaluated by an agency which attests to the qualitative and quantitative equivalency of the foreign education and the specific course or courses for which transfer credit is to be awarded. The institution must use the credential evaluation services of an agency that has published standards for membership, affiliations to U.S. based international higher education associations, and are frequently linked to and used by federal agencies, state agencies, educational institutions and employers (e.g. NACES and AICE).

The institution or program must demonstrate that it has evaluated the coursework accepted for transfer in accordance with its published policies, and the basis for a conclusion that it is equivalent to the coursework for which it substitutes and meets all ABHES requirements, including competency achievement.

~~As is provided elsewhere in this manual, programs and institutions must clearly state their transfer of credit policies, and they are encouraged to accept transfer credits to promote academic mobility and to avoid requiring students to unnecessarily repeat prior equivalent coursework.~~

Articulation Agreements and Consortium Agreements

As an alternative to case-by-case consideration of requests for transfer of credit, an institution or program may enter ~~in an~~ a consortium or articulation agreement with an institution accredited by an agency recognized by the ~~Secretary~~ United States Department of Education (USDE) of Education or the Council for Higher Education Accreditation (CHEA). Articulation and Consortium agreements are encouraged to provide opportunities for students' academic mobility.

An articulation agreement formalizes transfer of credits under certain specific conditions stated in the agreement and provides for acceptance of specific credits earned at the other institution to satisfy specific requirements for completion of a program. Credits accepted from another institution pursuant to ~~an articulation~~ such an -agreement are transfer credits and must meet all provisions regarding transfer credits. The receiving institution or program ~~receiving transfer credits~~ must demonstrate the basis for concluding that each transfer credit accepted is equivalent to the credit that it replaces in terms of the knowledge and skill the credit represents in the curriculum design. ~~Articulation agreements are encouraged to provide opportunities for academic mobility.~~

Consortium or contractual agreements are arranged between two (2) or more eligible schools in order that a student continues to receive Federal Student Aid while studying at an institution different than the student's designated school. Under a consortium or contractual agreement, the degree or certificate granting school accepts the credits taken at another institution(s), as if they were offered by the student's designated institution. The assumption is that the institution has found another school or organization's academic standards to be the equivalent to its own level of instruction.

Subsection 87 – Minimum completion requirement

At a minimum, 25 percent of the credits or the recognized clock-hour equivalent required for completion of a program must be earned through coursework offered by and completed at the institution or program granting the credential.